
 

 Council Meeting Agenda – December 20, 2021              1 
 

 
 
 
 

 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING AGENDA 

Monday, December 20, 2021 @ 8:00PM 
 

The Regular Council Meeting will be held in the Community Room at the Depot located 
at 200 S. Main St. Evart, MI 49631  

  
Before each regular council meeting there will be a standing pre-council work session from 

7:30PM to 8:00PM. 
 

1. Call to Order: 8:00PM 
 

2. Pledge of Allegiance  
 

3. Roll Call  
 

4. Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

5. Approval of Agenda 
 

6. Consent Agenda 
The purpose of the Consent Agenda is to expedite business by grouping non-controversial items together to be 
dealt with by one Board motion (roll-call vote) without discussion. Any person, whether Board Member, staff or 
public may ask that item be removed from the Consent Agenda to be placed elsewhere on the regular agenda for 
discussion. All such requests will be granted.  
A. Regular Council Minutes – December 6, 2021 
B. Vendor’s List $53,694.99 
C. Budget Amendments  

 
7. Unfinished Business  

D.  Agreement to Sale – Lots 2 & 3 at the Evart Air Industrial Park  
E. OHM Engineering Costs for River St. and High St.  

 
8. New Business 

F. MacLellan’s Offer to Purchase Lot 2 of the Industrial Park – Discussion  
 

9. Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
G.  Accounts Payable Report (12/7/2021 – 12/20/2021)  
H.  Payroll Reports (12/7/2021 – 12/20/2021) 
 

10. City Attorney Report/Comment 
 I.   Monthly Report (11/15/21 – 12/15/21)  

City Council 
Mayor: Chris Emerick 
Mayor Pro-Tem: Sandy Szeliga 
Council: Dan Elliott 
Sean Duffy 
Matt Hildebrand 
City Clerk: Kathy Fiebig 
City Manager: Pepper Lockhart 

City of Evart 
200 S. Main St.  
Evart, MI 49631 
(231) 734-2181 
 
 
 
 
 

www.evart.org 

http://www.evart.org/


 

 Council Meeting Agenda – December 20, 2021              2 
 

 
11. City Clerk Report/Comment 
      
12. City Manager Report/Comment   

J.  Monthly Report – November 2021  
 

13.  Finance Director Report/Comment 
  

14.  Department of Public Works Report/Comment 
 K. DPW Monthly Report – November 2021  
 

15.  Police Department Report/Comment 
 L. Police Department Monthly Report – November 2021 
 

16.  Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment 
 M. DDA Monthly Packet – Dec. 14, 2021 

 
17.  Evart Area Fire Department 

 N. Fire Board Minutes – Nov. 19, 2021 
 

18.  Evart Housing Commission 
 

19.  Citizens’ Comments – limited to 3-4 minutes per individual  
 

20.  Adjournment  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



1 
 

Evart Regular Council Minutes 12.6.2021 
 

CITY OF EVART 
REGULAR COUNCIL MEETING 

December 6, 2021@ 8:00PM 
Community Room at the Depot, 200 S. Main Street 

 
 

Mayor Chris Emerick led the assembly in the pledge of allegiance. 
 
Mayor Emerick called the meeting to order at 8:01pm. 
 
Present (via roll call): Sean Duffy, Dan Elliott, Chris Emerick, Matt Hildebrand, Sandra Szeliga 
 
Present (staff): City Manager Pepper Lockhart, Chief of Police John Beam Jr., City Clerk Kathy 
Fiebig 
 
Guests: Jason O’Dell, Jim Schwab, Roger Elkins 
 
Citizens’ Comments: 
Roger Elkins remarked that the refinished floor at the west end of the Depot looks great. 
 
Jason O’Dell has been reflecting on the Oxford school shootings and believes that it’s time to 
approach kid’s issues in a different manner. It’s time to look for the root of the problems and 
address issues at home in an effort to forestall problems at school. He is looking forward to the 
Community Resource Officer and is happy to hear that the position will not be restricted to the 
school system but will address the entire community. There was already a need for mental 
health services in Evart and COVID has increased that need. He reminded council that last year 
the Planning Commission was tasked with looking at zoning in the industrial park in order to 
possibly change the focus of the park in order to make it easier to sell the lots.  He hopes the 
city won’t sell these lots piece meal until the Commission has had time to discuss the issue. 
 
Approval of Agenda 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve the agenda as presented. Support by Mr. Hildebrand. 
Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Approval of Consent Agenda 
A.  Regular Council Minutes – November 18, 2021 
B.  Vendor’s List $61,110.72 
C.  Budget Amendments 
Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve the consent agenda as presented. Support by Mr. Elliott. 
Motion passed with all in favor. 
 
Unfinished Business 
D.  Agreement to Sale – Lots 2 & 3 at the Evart Air Industrial Park - tabled  
 
New Business 
E.  Request for Sewer Credit for 703 N. Pine Street 
Ms. Lockhart advised council that a hose had been left running outside this residence and that it 
has been confirmed that none of the water entered the sewer system. Motion by Mr. Hildebrand 
to approve a sewer credit of $734.87. Support by Mayor Emerick. Motion passed with all in 
favor. 
F.  Resolution 2021-22 Approving the Employment Agreement of the City Manager 



2 
 

Evart Regular Council Minutes 12.6.2021 
 

Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to approve Resolution 2021-22 approving the employment agreement 
for Pepper Lockhart as city manager. Support by Mr. Elliott. Motion passed with all in favor. 
G.  Chief of Police Contract Amendment/Renewal 
Ms. Lockhart reminded council that all Evart police officers received a raise recently, and that 
Chief Beam was not included in that process. Research has shown that his salary is low 
compared to others in the area. Mr. Hildebrand questioned the dates of the proposed contract 
as the final year (2027) only covers January through March. Chief said he hopes to retire then. 
Council requested that the contract be amended to show a full year in the final year of the 
contract since Chief can resign at any point with 30 days’ notice. Motion by Mr. Duffy to approve 
Chief Beam’s contract amending it to reflect the entire year of 2027 as suggested. Support by 
Ms. Szeliga. Motion passed with all in favor. 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to approve Resolution 2021-24 approving Chief Beam’s amended 
contract extension. Support by Mr. Elliott. Motion passed with a roll call vote; all were in favor. 
H.  Community Resource Officer 
Ms. Lockhart and Chief Beam told council that although this position started out as a school 
liaison officer, after discussion with school administration and other stakeholders it was decided 
to expand the job description into a community resource officer. While the officer will work within 
the schools, he will also work throughout the city, focusing on mental health intervention. Chief 
stressed that this job description is a living document and that the duties will flex depending 
upon community needs. He considers applicant Paul Cushman to be highly qualified for the 
position and due to his law enforcement experience, believes Mr. Cushman’s field training can 
be streamlined. Motion by Mr. Duffy to approve the job description for the Community Resource 
Officer and to authorize Chief Beam to offer the position to Mr. Cushman. Support by Mr. 
Hildebrand. Motion passed with all in favor. 
I.    Sale/Lease of Lot 2 and the McClellan Building 
Ms. Fiebig has received calls asking about the possibility of leasing the McClellan Building, as 
the real estate posting states the property is “for sale or lease.” The current tenant, although on 
a month-to-month lease now, has been in the building for many years and supports Ventra. She 
asked council to remove the “for lease” option from the listing, modifying it to “for sale, with a 90 
day notice required for the current tenant.” Motion by Mr. Hildebrand to modify the listing as 
suggested. Support by Mayor Emerick. Motion passed with all in favor. 
J.   Approval to move forward with OHM for engineering costs for River St. and High St. 
Ms. Lockhart and Mr. Elliott attended a meeting of the Rural Task Force to discuss possible 
improvements to High Street/River Street, the only street within the city limits that qualifies as a 
rural transportation road. This has been on the Task Force’s list for several years and the Task 
Force is now considering releasing funding for resurfacing (three-four inch chip and grind). The 
Osceola County Road Commission is willing to contribute $219,000 for the project. The city 
must provide a preliminary estimate of the cost, as when the street was first considered it was 
only for chip and seal. Council authorized Ms. Lockhart to proceed with obtaining a cost 
estimate from OHM.  No further action taken. 
K.  Renewal of Health Insurance 
Ms. Lockhart has three quotes in hand for health insurance but the city is locked into Blue Cross 
Blue Shield until the end of the fiscal year. She will continue to seek alternate plans in hopes of 
reducing the cost for both the city and all city employees. The options are limited now due to the 
structure of the contract with Blue Cross Blue Shield, but she believes that in the future, the city 
will be able to offer employees choices in coverage. 
 
Department/Informational Reports (No Action Needed) 
L.  Accounts Payable Report (11/19/2021 – 12/6/2021)                    
M. Payroll Reports (11/19/2021 – 12/6/2021)                          
N.  Revenue and Expense Report – November 2021 



3 
 

Evart Regular Council Minutes 12.6.2021 
 

 
City Attorney Report/Comment – no report 
City Clerk Report/Comment 
Ms. Fiebig told council that Dick Witbeck and the Witbeck Family Reunion have donated a new 
Riverside West sign for the intersection of South Main and 9th Street.  The new sign will replace 
the sign they had previously donated. It has deteriorated and is in poor condition. 
City Manager Report/Comment 
Ms. Lockhart confirmed that there is funding available for the grant match for the proposed new 
police vehicle. Plans are well underway for Miracle on Main Street. 
Finance Director Report/Comment – no report 
Department of Public Works Report/Comment – no report 
Police Department Report/Comment  
Chief Beam told council that the Shop with a Hero event went well. Twenty first responders 
purchased Christmas gifts for twenty-nine kids and their families. The action plan for Miracle on 
Main Street is being reviewed and modified as needed. He’s hired an electrician to replace the 
exterior lighting at the police station, and the electrician will also check the Christmas lighting 
that is out of order. The camera grant has been submitted and will be reviewed in January. Trail 
cams have been installed to protect the bridge lighting and are working well. Mr. Duffy has 
received several emails commenting on increasing crime and the lack of visibility of officers on 
the street. He noted that the police report shows our part time officer exceeding full time officers 
in calls. He hopes all officers are out on patrol rather than staying in the office. 
Downtown Development Authority Report/Comment – no report 
Evart Area Fire Department – no report 
Evart Housing Commission – no report 
 
Mr. Duffy requested that the City Attorney submit a written report of activity similar to those 
submitted by the Police Department and DPW. Ms. Lockhart will pass that request on to Mr. 
White. 
 
Citizens’ Comments: none 
 
Motion by Mayor Emerick to adjourn. Support by Mr. Elliott. Motion passed with all in favor. The 
meeting was adjourned at 8:48pm. 
 
 
 
_______________________________________ 
Kathy Fiebig                                           City Clerk 
 



CHECK REGISTER FOR CITY OF EVART 1/1Page: 12/16/2021 02:34 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021

AmountVendor NameVendorCheckBankCheck Date

Bank 751 VENDOR

454.98 OSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER02293883775112/07/2021
2,169.64 COOPER WOODCRAFT06113883875112/15/2021
3,158.97 FIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA923767(E)75112/15/2021

V0.00 VOID923768(E)75112/15/2021
V0.00 VOID923769(E)75112/15/2021

4,546.00 ACCIDENT FUND16443883975112/20/2021
1,300.00 BALDWIN ELECTRIC12133884075112/20/2021

88.40 BARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR11823884175112/20/2021
308.00 CERES SOLUTIONS12143884275112/20/2021
720.00 CHROUCH COMMUNICATIONS10483884375112/20/2021
623.03 CITY OF EVART00283884475112/20/2021

4,189.63 CUSTER BUILDERS11553884575112/20/2021
1,315.64 DEERE CREDIT, INC12003884675112/20/2021

923.62 DTE ENERGY05763884775112/20/2021
3,650.00 EGLE10283884875112/20/2021
4,825.10 EVART LITTLE LEAGUE21053884975112/20/2021

60.03 EVART PARTS PLUS17663885075112/20/2021
67.75 FILE SAFE, INC10253885175112/20/2021
155.98 GALL'S INC02933885275112/20/2021
110.12 HOMETOWN HARDWARE06773885375112/20/2021
96.50 INTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS08763885475112/20/2021
954.00 KUBE PROPANE, LLC11193885575112/20/2021
60.00 LERMA, INC03063885675112/20/2021
150.00 MASON-LAKE CONSERVATION DISTRICT10993885775112/20/2021
66.00 MICHIGAN STATE POLICE4253885875112/20/2021
85.00 MILES, GREG21063885975112/20/2021
52.25 PIONEER GROUP02553886075112/20/2021
541.13 POINT BROADBAND12013886175112/20/2021
145.08 PRINTING SYSTEMS06133886275112/20/2021

3,833.33 RCB CONTRACTING 7963886375112/20/2021
10,050.67 REPUBLIC SERVICES #23918063886475112/20/2021

750.00 SAVVY MEDIA GROUP LLC10573886575112/20/2021
267.49 SMITH LUMBER CO01293886675112/20/2021
518.00 STANDARD INSURANCE CO.09033886775112/20/2021
197.75 THERMAL-TEC MI INC18293886875112/20/2021
530.10 XEROX CORPORATION18033886975112/20/2021
229.90 LINGO1043770(E)75112/20/2021
535.38 AMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS1456771(A)75112/20/2021
708.92 MAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL1757772(A)75112/20/2021
41.44 MOMA, DUSTIN1157773(A)75112/20/2021

3,247.18 SCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.1730774(A)75112/20/2021
139.28 SWIFT ECKERT, TERESA2048775(A)75112/20/2021

1,828.70 TRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES1600776(A)75112/20/2021

751 TOTALS:

53,694.99 Total of 41 Disbursements:

0.00 Less 2 Void Checks:
53,694.99 Total of 43 Checks:























































CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 1/7Page
:

12/16/2021 02:35 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

363.96 701-000-222.120DUE TO STATE ED-TRAILER TAXOSCEOLA COUNTY TREASURER3883775112/07/2021

91.02 701-000-222.121DUE TO COUNTY - TRAILER TAX38837

454.98 

2,169.64 101-440-970.000CAPITAL OUTLAY-NON CAPITALIZECOOPER WOODCRAFT3883875112/15/2021

267.00 101-172-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESFIRST NATIONAL BANK OF OMAHA767(E)75112/15/2021

108.55 101-242-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSES767(E)

157.54 101-265-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES767(E)

108.13 101-265-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING767(E)

41.66 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONS767(E)

149.98 101-265-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE767(E)

96.83 101-301-727.000OFFICE SUPPLIES767(E)

123.12 101-301-758.006UNIFORMS767(E)

76.30 101-301-861.000GAS AND OIL767(E)

14.99 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT767(E)

176.90 101-301-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED767(E)

86.28 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES767(E)

146.71 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE767(E)

12.00 101-441-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE767(E)

146.72 207-751-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE767(E)

96.67 590-537-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING767(E)

41.66 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS767(E)

360.32 590-537-955.000MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE767(E)

96.66 591-545-741.000POSTAGE & SHIPPING767(E)

41.67 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS767(E)

360.29 591-545-955.000MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE767(E)

420.00 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES767(E)

28.99 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES767(E)

3,158.97 

** VOIDED **** VOIDED **VOID768(E)75112/15/2021

** VOIDED **** VOIDED **VOID769(E)75112/15/2021

681.90 101-301-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATIONACCIDENT FUND3883975112/20/2021

227.30 101-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION38839

318.22 202-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION38839

272.76 203-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION38839



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 2/7Page
:

12/16/2021 02:35 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

1,545.64 590-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION38839

1,500.18 591-850-724.000WORKMENS COMPENSATION38839

4,546.00 

1,300.00 101-301-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDBALDWIN ELECTRIC3884075112/20/2021

88.40 101-301-931.000VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCEBARNETT'S AUTO REPAIR3884175112/20/2021

308.00 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESCERES SOLUTIONS3884275112/20/2021

295.00 101-301-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESCHROUCH COMMUNICATIONS3884375112/20/2021

425.00 101-301-931.000VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE38843

720.00 

238.23 101-265-921.000UTILITIESCITY OF EVART3884475112/20/2021

42.68 101-301-921.000UTILITIES38844

58.91 101-442-921.000UTILITIES38844

216.65 207-751-921.000UTILITIES38844

66.56 208-757-921.000UTILITIES38844

623.03 

4,189.63 209-276-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESCUSTER BUILDERS3884575112/20/2021

1,315.64 661-599-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDDEERE CREDIT, INC3884675112/20/2021

120.30 101-301-921.000UTILITIESDTE ENERGY3884775112/20/2021

287.08 101-440-921.000UTILITIES38847

516.24 590-538-921.000UTILITIES38847

923.62 

3,650.00 591-545-729.000PERMITS AND FEESEGLE3884875112/20/2021

4,825.10 101-751-743.502LITTLE LEAGUE EXPENSEEVART LITTLE LEAGUE3884975112/20/2021

22.22 101-440-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESEVART PARTS PLUS3885075112/20/2021

6.27 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38850

31.54 661-599-930.100PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE38850

60.03 

22.58 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESFILE SAFE, INC3885175112/20/2021

22.58 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38851



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 3/7Page
:

12/16/2021 02:35 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

22.59 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38851

67.75 

155.98 101-301-758.006UNIFORMSGALL'S INC3885275112/20/2021

12.60 101-301-970.100CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZEDHOMETOWN HARDWARE3885375112/20/2021

12.99 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38853

66.45 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38853

18.08 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38853

110.12 

58.00 101-172-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESINTEGRITY BUSINESS SOLUTIONS3885475112/20/2021

38.50 101-215-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38854

96.50 

667.32 101-441-921.000UTILITIESKUBE PROPANE, LLC3885575112/20/2021

286.68 101-442-921.000UTILITIES38855

954.00 

60.00 101-301-807.000MEMBERSHIP AND DUESLERMA, INC3885675112/20/2021

150.00 101-442-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMASON-LAKE CONSERVATION DISTRICT3885775112/20/2021

66.00 101-301-841.000INVESTIGATIONSMICHIGAN STATE POLICE3885875112/20/2021

85.00 101-440-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCEMILES, GREG3885975112/20/2021

52.25 101-242-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGPIONEER GROUP3886075112/20/2021

76.13 101-442-850.000COMMUNICATIONSPOINT BROADBAND3886175112/20/2021

150.00 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38861

82.50 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38861

150.00 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38861

82.50 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38861

541.13 

43.52 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGPRINTING SYSTEMS3886275112/20/2021

50.78 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38862

50.78 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38862

145.08 



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 4/7Page
:

12/16/2021 02:35 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

76.67 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESRCB CONTRACTING3886375112/20/2021

115.00 101-301-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

38.33 101-440-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

306.67 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

76.67 101-442-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

76.67 207-751-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

76.67 208-757-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

1,533.33 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

1,533.32 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38863

3,833.33 

129.00 101-441-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESREPUBLIC SERVICES #2393886475112/20/2021

9,716.67 101-526-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38864

90.00 209-276-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38864

57.50 590-538-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38864

57.50 591-546-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES38864

10,050.67 

250.00 101-265-850.000COMMUNICATIONSSAVVY MEDIA GROUP LLC3886575112/20/2021

250.00 590-537-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38865

250.00 591-545-850.000COMMUNICATIONS38865

750.00 

24.77 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESSMITH LUMBER CO3886675112/20/2021

81.44 101-448-930.000REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE38866

161.28 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES38866

267.49 

181.30 101-301-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITSSTANDARD INSURANCE CO.3886775112/20/2021

129.50 101-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38867

15.54 202-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38867

10.36 203-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38867

98.42 590-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38867

82.88 591-850-719.000OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS38867

518.00 

197.75 101-301-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESTHERMAL-TEC MI INC3886875112/20/2021

120.73 101-265-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTINGXEROX CORPORATION3886975112/20/2021



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 5/7Page
:

12/16/2021 02:35 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

167.92 101-301-932.000COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT38869

120.73 590-537-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38869

120.72 591-545-900.000PUBLISHING/PRINTING38869

530.10 

153.27 590-538-850.000COMMUNICATIONSLINGO770(E)75112/20/2021

76.63 591-546-850.000COMMUNICATIONS770(E)

229.90 

209.25 590-538-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIESAMERICAN SPECIALTY PRODUCTS771(A)75112/20/2021

209.25 591-546-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES771(A)

116.88 661-599-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES771(A)

535.38 

177.23 101-265-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICESMAURER'S TEXTILE RENTAL772(A)75112/20/2021

177.23 101-441-740.000OPERATING SUPPLIES772(A)

177.23 590-537-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES772(A)

177.23 591-545-801.000PROFESSIONAL SERVICES772(A)

708.92 

41.44 101-441-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESMOMA, DUSTIN773(A)75112/20/2021

552.58 101-301-861.000GAS AND OILSCOTLAND OIL COMPANY, INC.774(A)75112/20/2021

2,694.60 661-599-861.000GAS AND OIL774(A)

3,247.18 

139.28 101-301-860.000TRAVEL EXPENSESSWIFT ECKERT, TERESA775(A)75112/20/2021

1,828.70 591-546-730.000OUTSOURCED TESTINGTRACE ANALYTICAL LABORATORIES776(A)75112/20/2021

        291.66 COMMUNICATIONS101-265-850.000
        276.48 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-265-801.000
        108.13 POSTAGE & SHIPPING101-265-741.000
        157.54 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-265-740.000
         52.25 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-242-900.000
        108.55 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-242-860.000
         38.50 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-215-740.000
        267.00 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-172-860.000
         58.00 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-172-740.000

--- GL TOTALS --- 

53,694.99 TOTAL OF 43 CHECKS (2 voided)TOTAL - ALL FUNDS



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 6/7Page
:

12/16/2021 02:35 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

        171.51 PUBLISHING/PRINTING590-537-900.000
        374.16 COMMUNICATIONS590-537-850.000
        349.81 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-537-801.000
         96.67 POSTAGE & SHIPPING590-537-741.000
      4,279.63 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES209-276-801.000
         66.56 UTILITIES208-757-921.000
         76.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES208-757-801.000
        146.72 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE207-751-930.000
        216.65 UTILITIES207-751-921.000
         76.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES207-751-801.000
        272.76 WORKMENS COMPENSATION203-850-724.000
         10.36 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS203-850-719.000
        318.22 WORKMENS COMPENSATION202-850-724.000
         15.54 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS202-850-719.000
        227.30 WORKMENS COMPENSATION101-850-724.000
        129.50 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-850-719.000
      4,825.10 LITTLE LEAGUE EXPENSE101-751-743.502
      9,716.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-526-801.000
         81.44 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-448-930.000
        345.59 UTILITIES101-442-921.000
         76.13 COMMUNICATIONS101-442-850.000
        226.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-442-801.000
         12.00 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-441-930.000
        667.32 UTILITIES101-441-921.000
         41.44 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-441-860.000
        435.67 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-441-801.000
        274.72 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-441-740.000
      2,169.64 CAPITAL OUTLAY-NON CAPITALIZE101-440-970.000
        244.70 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-440-930.000
        287.08 UTILITIES101-440-921.000
         38.33 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-440-801.000
        416.50 OPERATING SUPPLIES101-440-740.000
      1,489.50 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED101-301-970.100
        182.91 COMPUTERS/EQUIPMENT/IT101-301-932.000
        513.40 VEHICLE REPAIR & MAINTENANCE101-301-931.000
        162.98 UTILITIES101-301-921.000
        628.88 GAS AND OIL101-301-861.000
        139.28 TRAVEL EXPENSES101-301-860.000
         66.00 INVESTIGATIONS101-301-841.000
         60.00 MEMBERSHIP AND DUES101-301-807.000
        607.75 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES101-301-801.000
        279.10 UNIFORMS101-301-758.006
         96.83 OFFICE SUPPLIES101-301-727.000
        681.90 WORKMENS COMPENSATION101-301-724.000
        181.30 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS101-301-719.000
        149.98 REPAIRS AND MAINTENANCE101-265-930.000
        238.23 UTILITIES101-265-921.000
        164.25 PUBLISHING/PRINTING101-265-900.000



CHECK DISBURSEMENT REPORT FOR CITY OF EVART 7/7Page
:

12/16/2021 02:35 PM
User: JENNIE
DB: CITY OF EVART

CHECK DATE FROM 12/07/2021 - 12/20/2021
Banks: 751

AmountGL #DescriptionPayeeCheck #BankCheck Date

     53,694.99 TOTAL
         91.02 DUE TO COUNTY - TRAILER TAX701-000-222.121
        363.96 DUE TO STATE ED-TRAILER TAX701-000-222.120
      1,315.64 CAPITAL OUTLAY-CAPITALIZED661-599-970.100
         31.54 PREVENTATIVE MAINTENANCE661-599-930.100
      2,694.60 GAS AND OIL661-599-861.000
        145.87 OPERATING SUPPLIES661-599-740.000
      1,500.18 WORKMENS COMPENSATION591-850-724.000
         82.88 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS591-850-719.000
         76.63 COMMUNICATIONS591-546-850.000
      1,590.82 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-546-801.000
        808.61 OPERATING SUPPLIES591-546-740.000
      1,828.70 OUTSOURCED TESTING591-546-730.000
        360.29 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE591-545-955.000
        171.50 PUBLISHING/PRINTING591-545-900.000
        374.17 COMMUNICATIONS591-545-850.000
        349.82 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES591-545-801.000
         96.66 POSTAGE & SHIPPING591-545-741.000
      3,650.00 PERMITS AND FEES591-545-729.000
      1,545.64 WORKMENS COMPENSATION590-850-724.000
         98.42 OTHER FRINGE BENEFITS590-850-719.000
        516.24 UTILITIES590-538-921.000
        153.27 COMMUNICATIONS590-538-850.000
      1,590.83 PROFESSIONAL SERVICES590-538-801.000
        209.25 OPERATING SUPPLIES590-538-740.000
        360.32 MISCELLANEOUS EXPENSE590-537-955.000



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 12/07/2021 to 12/20/2021 

12/16/2021 11:38 AM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 1 of 2

Open0.00169.88169.88MISDU          2326175012/15/2021

Cleared719.190.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD615275012/15/2021

Cleared698.620.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD615375012/15/2021

Cleared147.410.00167.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD615475012/15/2021

Cleared450.120.00746.72 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD615575012/15/2021

Cleared388.960.00468.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD615675012/15/2021

Cleared1,267.490.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD615775012/15/2021

Cleared689.040.001,109.61 MARTIN, DALE          DD615875012/15/2021

Cleared755.530.001,017.20 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD615975012/15/2021

Cleared1,036.020.001,394.23 MOMA, DUSTIN L         DD616075012/15/2021

Cleared851.770.001,268.12 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD616175012/15/2021

Cleared595.220.00760.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD616275012/15/2021

Cleared171.790.00195.00 SHERMAN, GREGG A         DD616375012/15/2021

Cleared491.390.00552.00 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD616475012/15/2021

Cleared336.980.00382.50 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD616575012/15/2021

Cleared746.700.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD616675012/15/2021

Cleared507.610.00743.20 ZINGER, ADAM          DD616775012/15/2021

Open0.002,973.342,973.34FEDERAL 941          EFT68875012/15/2021

Open0.00169.88169.88MISDU          2326075012/08/2021

Cleared719.210.001,096.15 BEAM, JOHN          DD613375012/08/2021

Cleared698.620.00932.69 DUNCAN, JENNIFER          DD613475012/08/2021

Cleared147.390.00167.31 FIEBIG, KATHY          DD613575012/08/2021

Cleared447.960.00745.21 FLACHS, MICHAEL J         DD613675012/08/2021

Cleared262.440.00306.00 HIGGINS, JERALD J         DD613775012/08/2021

Cleared1,267.490.001,756.59 LOCKHART, PEPPER L         DD613875012/08/2021

Cleared585.350.00948.54 MARTIN, DALE          DD613975012/08/2021

Cleared770.490.001,055.36 MCCLURE, PATRICK K         DD614075012/08/2021

Cleared1,036.040.001,394.23 MOMA, DUSTIN L         DD614175012/08/2021

Cleared683.270.001,035.20 MUCZYNSKI, PATRICK          DD614275012/08/2021

Cleared595.200.00760.00 MULKERNS, CHRISTINE L         DD614375012/08/2021



StatusDepositCheck AmountGrossNameCheck NumberBankCheck Date

DirectPhysicalCheck

For Check Dates 12/07/2021 to 12/20/2021 

12/16/2021 11:38 AM Check Register Report For City Of Evart Page 2 of 2

Cleared422.340.00465.75 SWIFT-ECKERT, TERESA M         DD614475012/08/2021

Cleared242.370.00275.10 TUPPER, VICTORIA          DD614575012/08/2021

Cleared746.700.00904.28 WILSON, CHAD W         DD614675012/08/2021

Cleared594.010.00856.43 ZINGER, ADAM          DD614775012/08/2021

Open0.002,786.322,786.32FEDERAL 941          EFT68575012/08/2021

33

2

Total Check Stubs:

Total Physical Checks:

19,072.726,099.4232,291.86Number of Checks:  035Totals:



WHITE LAW OFFICE P.L.C. 
                                                          
JAMES R. WHITE                             116 NORTH MAIN STREET                   Legal Assistants:         
ATTORNEY AT LAW                                 P.O. BOX 973                        Nadine A. White 
                                                                  EVART, MI  49631                 Shannon H. Myers             
    
                                             Phone: (231)734-3531  --  Fax: (231)683-4772 

  E-mail:  jwhite@whitelawoffice.net 
 

 
      CITY OF EVART 
     City Attorney Report 
 
November 15, 2021 – December 15, 2021 
 
Working with 6251, through Loren Andrulis, regarding a real property purchase from the City of 
Evart. Includes title searching, back to the 1980’s to determine the City purchase from CSX and 
reviewing legal descriptions.  2.75 hr 
 
Research various matters regarding Lume and their subsidiaries. This includes the land 
purchase of Lot 1, Evart Air Industrial Park, as well as the land swap, with the City, regarding 
trail property. This research included zoning issues, review of surveys and legal descriptions, 
and document review regarding the transactions.  4.75 hr. 
 
Work on condemnation of properties within the City of Evart, including researching the City 
Ordinances and State Codes, as well as determining the proper ownership of the properties and 
drafting of letters, to the owners of the properties.           3.0 hr 
 
Review contracts of the City Manager and Chief of Police    .75 hr 
 
Research Ballot proposal, to amend the City Charter, regarding City Clerk, including research 
and telephone conferences with other City Attorneys.  2.5 hr 
 
Research various zoning issues, including Special Use issues    1.0 
 
Work with City Clerk on getting files updated on the City Ordinances and Resolutions, including 
reviewing the documents and organizing files   2.25 hr. 
 
Total Hours: 17  
 

mailto:white1netmail@netscape.net


City Hall  200 S Main St  Evart  49631 
www.evart.org 

 
 
 
 
       
Monthly Report  
November 2021  
 
CDBG Grant 
The City will be meeting with John Tanner and the MEDC staff to go over why we did not receive the CBDG grant. The next round of funding will be late 
January early February and we want to ensure we do what they request to be able to receive this. We will be meeting the first week of January.   
 
Surplus Properties 
We currently have several inquiries to these parcels. More discussion moving forward.  
 
Treasury and Finance Department 
Finance Director Duncan is working on the new budget and the new chart of account standards. 
The winter taxes were mailed December 1.  
Health insurance options have been given to employees and will be completed December 20th.   
 
Assessing Department  
 The City’s Board of Review met on December 14th to approve principle residence and poverty exemptions.  
 
Police Department  
We are completing the community resource officer position and should have someone in place in January. Teresa was asked to be on a panel for 
LERMA, (Law Enforcement Records Management Association) a group that consists of departments around the state of Michigan. Teresa currently 
works with the Watchguard system and will be helping Lake County to learn how to use it.   Chief has been installing more cameras and we have several 
installed at the Depot now. The bridge cameras are working, and the picture quality is very good. 
 
Department of Public Works and Water & Sewer Department  
Meter replacement project is still underway, we are still waiting for the shipment of some of the commercial and industrial meters to arrive. SLC Meters 
will be installing all commercial and industrial meters with city staff assistance. City staff has been not only installing meters but fixing problems along 
the way.  
 

Pepper Lockhart 
Office of the City Manager  



City Hall  200 S Main St  Evart  49631 
www.evart.org 

Parks & Recreation 
We are working on the job description for the park host. We will need to look at the utilities to make sure they are safe and available.  
 
Airport 
We are researching options to clear the end of the runway. We have received a quote from C&S and Dustin is working on a couple other options to 
bring to the first January meeting. 
The expansion of hangars, fuel and airport maintenance is still being considered. This project is still being considered under private funding. 
  
Misc.  
I have spoke with ZP 6251, LLC regarding our development agreement. I will be meeting with them in January as well. 
 
Planning Commission  
The Commission will meet on December 27, 2021 at 5:30 pm. The commission is currently reviewing and making suggestions to update the Master Land 
Use Plan. Now that we have hired Williams & Works discussion will be to move forward. Sean Duffy and I have signed up to take Citizen Planner.  









 

 

Evart Police Department 
Monthly Report 

November 2021 

 
 

Community Events 
 

The Evart Police Department did not participate in any community events during the month of November. 
 

Trainings 

The Evart Police Department did not attend any trainings during the month of November. 

 
Department Roster 

Title Name Badge Number 

Chief of Police John Beam Jr. 39-01 

K9-Officer Patrick McClure 39-K9 

Full Time Police Officer Chad Wilson 39-04 

Part Time Police Officer JJ Higgins 39-06 

Part Time Police Officer Johnnie Daniels 39-03 

Reserve Officer Daniel Winters 39-14 
 

Activities Report 

 TOTAL ACTIVITIES  

OFFICER TOTAL ACTIVITIES 

Beam, John Jr. 25 

Higgins, JJ 100 

McClure, Patrick 96 

Wilson, Chad 199 

TOTAL: 420 
 

 

   

 ARRESTS  

OFFICER NUMBER OF ARRESTS 

 



Higgins, JJ 0 

Beam, John Jr. 0 

McClure, Patrick 4 

Wilson, Chad 1 

TOTAL: 5 
 

   

 ASSISTS  

AGENCY NUMBER OF ASSISTS 

Assist Citizen 8 

Assist DHS 2 

Assist OCSD 1 

TOTAL: 11 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 ACCIDENTS   

TYPE NUMBER OF 
ACCIDENTS 

 

Accident - Hit and Run 1  

Accident - PD 1  

Accident - PI 1  

Accident - Private 
Property 

4  

TOTAL: 7  
 

   

     

 TRAFFIC 
VIOLATIONS 

 

OFFICER Traffic 
Complaint/Hazard 

Traffic Stop 
Citation 

Traffic Stop 
Verbal Warning 

Beam, John Jr. 1 0 0 

Higgins, JJ 1 0 0 

McClure, Patrick 1 7 8 

  



Wilson, Chad 3 0 10 

TOTAL: 6 7 18 
 

     

 ORDINANCE 
VIOLATIONS 

  

OFFICER ORDINANCE VIOLATIONS ORDINANACE COUNT 

Wilson, Chad Ordinance Violation - Warning 14 

TOTAL: 14 
 

 

 

Activity Breakout by Officer 

 

Name Activity Activity Count  

Beam, John Jr. Accident - Private Property 1  

Assist Citizen 1  

Follow-Up 5  

Property Check 16  

Suspicious Situation 1  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

Activity Categories Total Count: 25  

Higgins, JJ Assist Citizen 7  

Assist DHS 1  

Attempt to Locate 2  

Civil Complaint 1  

Follow-Up 11  

Parking Citation 1  

Property Check 62  

Public Relation Event 1  

Runaway 3  

Stationary Radar 8  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

 



Training 2  

Activity Categories Total Count: 100  

McClure, Patrick Accident - PI 1  

Assist Citizen 2  

Civil Complaint 3  

Domestic 1  

Follow-Up 6  

Misdemeanor Arrest 4  

Property Check 39  

Stationary Radar 23  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

Traffic Stop Citation 6  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 8  

Training 1  

Warrant Attempt 1  

Activity Categories Total Count: 96  

Wilson, Chad Accident - Hit and Run 1  

Accident - PD 1  

Accident - Private Property 3  

Alarm 1  

Animal Complaint 1  

Assist Citizen 2  

Assist DHS 1  

Assist OCSD 1  

Check Well Being 2  

Civil Complaint 3  

Criminal Sexual Conduct 1  

Domestic 1  



Follow-Up 45  

Fraud 1  

Harassment 1  

Juvenile Complaint 1  

Larceny 1  

MDOP 1  

Misdemeanor Arrest 3  

Ordinance Violation - Warning 15  

Property Check 64  

Retail Fraud 2  

Runaway 1  

Stationary Radar 26  

Suspicious Person 2  

Suspicious Situation 4  

Suspicious Vehicle 1  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 3  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 10  

Activity Categories Total Count: 199  
 

 

  

Name Activity Activity Count  

Beam, John Jr. Accident - Private Property 1  

Assist Citizen 1  

Follow-Up 5  

Property Check 16  

Suspicious Situation 1  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

Activity Categories Total Count: 25  

 



Higgins, JJ Assist Citizen 7  

Assist DHS 1  

Attempt to Locate 2  

Civil Complaint 1  

Follow-Up 11  

Parking Citation 1  

Property Check 62  

Public Relation Event 1  

Runaway 3  

Stationary Radar 8  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

Training 2  

Activity Categories Total Count: 100  

McClure, Patrick Accident - PI 1  

Assist Citizen 2  

Civil Complaint 3  

Domestic 1  

Follow-Up 6  

Misdemeanor Arrest 4  

Property Check 39  

Stationary Radar 23  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 1  

Traffic Stop Citation 6  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 8  

Training 1  

Warrant Attempt 1  

Activity Categories Total Count: 96  

Wilson, Chad Accident - Hit and Run 1  



Accident - PD 1  

Accident - Private Property 3  

Alarm 1  

Animal Complaint 1  

Assist Citizen 2  

Assist DHS 1  

Assist OCSD 1  

Check Well Being 2  

Civil Complaint 3  

Criminal Sexual Conduct 1  

Domestic 1  

Follow-Up 45  

Fraud 1  

Harassment 1  

Juvenile Complaint 1  

Larceny 1  

MDOP 1  

Misdemeanor Arrest 3  

Ordinance Violation - Warning 15  

Property Check 64  

Retail Fraud 2  

Runaway 1  

Stationary Radar 26  

Suspicious Person 2  

Suspicious Situation 4  

Suspicious Vehicle 1  

Traffic Complaint/Hazard 3  

Traffic Stop Verbal Warning 10  



Activity Categories Total Count: 199  
 

 

 

 



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Tuesday December 14th, 2021 8:00 AM 
200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 

BOARD MEETING AGENDA 
 

 

1. Call Meeting to Order  

2. Attendance  

3. Introduction of Guests  

4. Citizen Comments  

5. Approval of Agenda  

6. Approval of November 10, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes 

7. Approval of Vendor List for November 2021 

8. President’s Comments 

9. Director’s Comments  

10. City Manager’s Comments  

11. Committee Updates  

Economic Vitality 

a. Farmers Market 

b. Pop-Up 

c. Business Recruitment Primer 

Design 

a. SBEI 

b. Benches/Bike Racks (2) 

c. Way Finding Signage (paused) 

Promotion 

a. Shop Local 

Organization 

a. Board Recruiting  

b. Volunteers 
 

13. Old Business 
a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 

b. Director Search Committee 

c. Trails Magazine 

14. New Business  



a.   

b.  

15. Citizen’s Comments  

16. Adjournment  



EVART DOWNTOWN DEVELOPMENT AUTHORITY 
Wednesday November 10th, 2021 8:00 AM 

200 South Main Street; Evart, MI 49631 
BOARD MEETING MINUTES 

 

1. Meeting called to order by Bengry at 8:03am 
 

2. Attendance: Alan Bengry, Molly Cataldo, Lynn Salinas, June-Marie Essner, Shannon Schmidt, Erica 
Henry, Sandy Szeliga, Pepper Lockhart 
Absent: Jason O’Dell 

 
3. Guests: Angela Hunter 

4. Citizen Comments: None 

5. Moved by Salinas, Supported by Essner for approval of Agenda with the addition of item C in New 
Business: Audit report. 
Ayes: 8   Nays: 0   Result: Carried 
 

6. Moved by Cataldo, supported by Salinas for approval of October 12, 2021 Regular Meeting Minutes. 
Ayes:  8   Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

 
7. Approval of Vendor List for September 2021 and October 2021: 

Moved by Cataldo, supported by Schmidt to approve the September 2021 Vendor list in the amount 
of $564.60 and the October 2021 Vendor list in the amount of $676.38.  Essner Abstained. 
Ayes:  7   Nays:  0  Abstain:  1  Result: Carried 
  

8. President’s Comments: 2021 MCACA Grant complete and final disbursement will arrive soon.  2022 
MCACA Grant award is $2,250.  MCACA grant recipient requirements discussed.  Joint meeting with 
the Planning Commission, City Council, the Chamber of Commerce and the DDA Board of Directors 
went well.  Another will be scheduled for January with additional invitations to the Interim Housing 
Commission Director and representatives from the school system to join us, as well. 

 
9. Director’s Comments: No report 

10. City Manager’s Comments: No Report 
 
11. Committee Updates  

Economic Vitality 
a. Farmers Market:  See Report.  Additional information from Market Manger: $4,035 Vendor fees 

collected for the season.  Manager is working with Prescription for Health to receive food 
vouchers.  Manager will be attending the Food Access meeting for MIFMA. Discussion on how 
to get the word out about the food assistance programs offered at the market. 

b. Pop-Up: Leased for December 
c. Business Recruitment Primer: Lockhart has a meeting with the Assessor and will discuss what is 

still needed. 
 



Design 
a. SBEI 
b. Benches/Bike Racks: Paused for SBEI completion. 
c. Way Finding Signage:  Paused for SBEI completion.  

 
 

Promotion 
a. Shop Local: Salinas applied for the Shop Small Neighborhood Champion.  2022 will be Evart’s 

Sesquicentennial. Schmidt presented some signage ideas to promote Downtown. 
 
Organization 

a. Board Recruiting: No action at this time 
b. Volunteers 

 
13. Old Business 

a. Development Plan and Tax Increment Financing Plan 
b. Director Search:  An offer has been made for the DDA Director position. 
c. Initiate Small Business Training Series Fall 2021 Cohort:  Last training is this month. 
d. Evart Christmas Market:  This is not happening this year.  More time is needed to plan this 

project. 
  

14. New Business  

a. Trails Magazine:  Move to old business. 
b. Shop Small Initiative:  Discussed earlier during promotion regarding Shop Small Business 

Saturday. 
c. Audit report:  Reviewed report from the Audit.  No action needed. 

 
15. Citizen’s Comments  

 
16. Motion made by Cataldo, supported by Schmidt to adjourn. 

Ayes:  8  Nays:  0  Result:  Carried 

 

 

Respectfully submitted,  June-Marie Essner, secretary 





















BILLING INFORMATION

Business Name: 

Billing Contact:

Address: City:    Michigan, Zip:

Phone #:                                 Email:

Contact Person:                                   Phone #:                        Website:

ADVERTISING SPACE RESERVATION AGREEMENT

Rockford Advertising, 128 Courtland Street, Rockford • Phone: (616) 866-2817 • Fax: (616) 866-2812

2022

PRINT ADVERTISING POSITIONS AND RATES
TRAILBAZER – Full-Page Prime Positions: 
[  ] Back Cover $3,875  
[  ] Inside Back Cover $3,575  
[  ] Inside Front Cover (left side) $3,575  
[  ] Inside Front Cover (right side) $3,575  
[  ] First Inside Spread (pages 4 or 5) $3,575  
[  ] Facing Table of Contents $3,575  
[  ] Facing Introductory Article $3,475  
[  ] Facing Feature Article $3,375  
[  ] Facing Regional Trail Map Page $2,975  

TRAIL SPONSOR – Facing Specific Trail Map: 
[  ] Full Page (size: 8.5” x 10.75” Full Bleed) $2,725  
     Map: 
[  ] Half Page (size: 7.5” x 4.75” Horizontal) $1,450  
     Map:  
[  ] Quarter Page (size: 3.625” x 4.75” Vertical) $775  
     Map:  
[  ] Eighth Page (size: 3.625” x 2.25” Horizontal) $395  
     Map:  

WEBSITE ADVERTISING:   (Circle Selection)

LEADERBOARD AD – Top of Web Page
POSITION 12 MONTHS 6 MONTHS 3 MONTHS

Home Page $995 $895 $795

Primary Pages $495 $425 $395

Trail Pages $395 $325 $295  
Web Page:   

BILLBOARD AD – Right Side of Web Page 
POSITION 12 MONTHS 6 MONTHS 3 MONTHS

Home Page $795 $695 $595

Primary Pages $395 $325 $295

Trail Pages $295 $225 $195  
Web Page:  

Trail Resource Guide Listing: $99 (12 months)  
Web Page:  

TOTAL CONTRACT AMOUNT:    

PRINT ADVERTISING SPECIFICATIONS AND POLICIES

RESERVATION DEADLINE FOR 2022 EDITION: February 18, 2022

ADVERTISING ARTWORK MATERIALS DEADLINE: March 4, 2022

TERMS: Payment due in full by April 22, 2022. Pay early and received a 
5% discount for payments received in full by February 18, 2022 or within 
10 days of invoice date. Late payments subject to 18% interest.

PRINT ADVERTISING MATERIALS SPECIFICATIONS:
Advertising artwork supplied by client (or created by Rockford 
Advertising at hourly rate of $50). All advertisements are four-color-pro-
cess. All full page advertisements are full-bleed. Publication Trim Size: 
8.5” x 10.75”. Bleed: Add 1/8” (.125") bleed edge on all four sides. 

ELECTRONIC FILES:
Michigan Trails Magazine is a “computer-to-plate” publication. Electronic 
files required for all advertisements. Artwork must be submitted as a 
"Press Quality PDF" file. All images must be 300 dpi resolution at 100% 
of size used in ad, CMYK mode. Electronic files should be emailed as 
attachment to: rpulver@RockfordAdvertising.com. 

WEBSITE ADVERTISING SPECIFICATIONS AND POLICIES

RESERVATION DEADLINE: None. Ads placed within one week of 
acceptance of reservation agreement and receipt of ad artwork.

TERMS: Payment due in full within 30 days of invoice date. Late
payments subject to 18% interest.

WEBSITE ADVERTISING ARTWORK SPECIFICATIONS:
• Leaderboard ad dimensions are 1450 pixels wide x 180 pixels high.
• Billboard ad dimensions are 522 pixels wide x 324 pixels high.
• Ad artwork must be in jpeg format with file size less than 30KB.
• Submit ad as email attachment to: rpulver@rockfordadvertising.com

ACCEPTANCE OF AGREEMENT:

Signature below indicates that client has read and accepted the above 
order, terms, conditions, billing and policies as stated in this agreement. 
Any changes must be in writing and accepted by Rockford Advertising.

Name (print): 

Title:

Date:

Signature:
 



Do More
Business

with
the 

Millions
of 

People
who 
Love

Michigan
Trails

2020
Media Guide



Magazine
Distribution &  
Demographics

Over 3.2 Million Michigan residents* ride a bike for  
recreation or transportation each year. Running, hiking,  
rollerblading, equestrian and winter sports account  
for a large percentage of trail use, but there have been   
no studies to quantify the specific number of users.
*Source: 2014 nationwide study conducted by People For Bikes

*Source: Google Analytics of Michigan Trails website.

2020 Media Guide

Magazine Distribution
MDOT Welcome Centers .................................   26,000
Regional /Local Tourist Information Centers ........  17,225
Bike & Fitness Retail Shops ................................ 8,775
Lodging & Restaurants near the Trails .................3,700
Trail Groups and Paid Subscriptions ................... 15,775
Bookstores and Retail Sales ................................ 1,550
Other .................................................................. 1,925
Total Distribution .............................................. 165,000

Michigan Trails Magazine is published  
annually in mid April.

27%

Age 18 - 24 Age 25 - 34 Age 35 - 44 Age 45 - 54 Age 55 - 64 Age 64 and older

33%

6%6%

13%
15%

MDOT 
Welcome Centers

40%

Regional/Local
Visitors Centers

27%

Bookstores & Retail Sales 2%

Other
3%

Trail Groups & Paid Subscriptions 9%

Lodging & Restaurants 6%

Bike & Fitness
Retail Shops

13%

Male
54%

Female
46%

Michigan
Residents 

who ride a bike
33%

Other
Michigan
Residents
67%

MAGAZINE

Ride your bike or hike to this scenic cliff  
overlooking Lake Superior and the North  
Lighthouse on Grand Island near Pictured  
Rocks National Lakeshore. See page 00.

Your Guide to Over 120 of  
Michigan’s Best Non-Motorized Biking,  

Hiking and Water Trails.

www.MiTrails.org2019
TRAILS

ICHIGANM

Michigan Cyclists

Age Group Distribution*
(from sample of over 83,000 users)



W EBSITE
MIT R A IL S .ORG

175,452
Pageviews

Year 11/1/2018 to 10/31/2019
Source: Google Analytics

How Visitors Find Us

Visitor Gender, Age, Interests

January

February

March

April

May

June

July

August

September

October

November

December

0 25,000 50,000 75,000 100,000

2018 Ad Clicks

Trail lovers everywhere use the Michigan Trails 
Magazine website MITRAILS.ORG to learn about 
their favorite trails. With maps, photographs and 
narrative for more than 100 of Michigan’s best trails, 
many in addition to those in our Magazine, it is a 
popular and important website.

Your ad on the MITRAILS.ORG website is linked 
to “click through” to your organization’s website 
each time someone clicks it. In 2018, our server 
tracked 844,509 click-throughs on our website 
advertisers ads. That’s a lot of additonal traffic and 
visibility for our advertisers.

People visit MITRAILS.ORG looking for information 
about the trails, and opportunities to enjoy businesses 
and services nearby. Put yourself in front of everyone 
with an ad on MITRAILS.ORG. 

2020 Media Guide



Reservation deadline for 2020 edition: February 15, 2020

Advertising artwork materials deadline: March 1, 2020

Print advertising materials specifications:
All advertisements are four-color-process. All full page advertise-
ments are full-bleed. Publication Trim Size: 8.5" x 10.75". Add 1/8" 

Advertisement Size Options and Dimensions

Screen Capture of 

Fred Meijer White Pine Trail State Park - 

Entire Trail Web Page 

showing all 3

advertising options.

Leaderboard Advertisement 1450 pixels wide x 180 pixels high
Displayed at the top of specified web page.

Billboard Advertisement 
522 pixels wide x 324 pixels high
Displayed below slide show on 
specified web page.

Trail Resource Guide Listing
Includes logo or photo 
150 pixels wide x 90 pixels high
plus business information and link 
to advertiser’s web site.

Ad artwork must be in jpeg format with file size less than 30KB.
Submit ad as email attachment to: rpulver@rockfordadvertising.com

MAGAZINE

Ride your bike or hike to this scenic cliff  
overlooking Lake Superior and the North  
Lighthouse on Grand Island near Pictured  
Rocks National Lakeshore. See page 00.

Your Guide to Over 120 of  
Michigan’s Best Non-Motorized Biking,  

Hiking and Water Trails.

www.MiTrails.org2019
TRAILS

ICHIGANM

Full Page Ad
8.5"  x  10.75"

with 1/8" (0.125") of bleed edge

Michigan Trails Magazine 2018128

1   Location on map.

Li
tt

le
 T

ra
ve

rs
e 

W
h

ee
lw

ay

1/2 Page Ad
7.5"  x  4.75"

1/4 Page Ad
3.625"  x  4.75"

1/8 Page Ad
3.625"  x  2.25"

1/8 Page Ad
3.625"  x  2.25"

2020 Media Guide

Magazine Advertising Specifications

Website Advertising Specifications

(.125") bleed edge on all four sides for full-page ads. Electronic files 
required for all advertisements. Artwork must be submitted as a 
“Press Quality PDF” file. All artwork and photos must be 300 dpi 
resolution at 100% of size used in ad, CYMK mode. Electronic files 
should be emailed as attachment to: rpulver@RockfordAdvertising.com.

2
01

9
 e

d
it

io
n

Michigan Trails Magazine is published by Rockford Advertising, 
128 Courtland Street, Rockford, Michigan.  

For advertising rates and information call (616) 866-2817 
or visit: MiTrails.org



Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

Fire Board Meeting 

November 9, 2021 @ 4:30 PM 

 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 

Meeting called to order by Chairman Hammer 4:40pm. 

ROLL CALL:  Gary Hammer – Evart Township, Dan Elliott – City of Evart, Sherri 
Bancroft – Osceola Township, Bev Mills – Sylvan Township, Diane Brackett – 
Orient Township (Absent). 

GUESTS: Shane Helmer, Jesse Hyden, Angie Cushman, Sarah Hyden. 

Citizens Comments: None 

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART 2ND BY SYLVAN to amend and approve the agenda as 
revised with the addition of new business #3 AFG Grant, #4 Audit, and #5 
Building. MOTION PASSED. 

MOTION BY OSCEOLA 2ND BY CITY OF EVART to approve the consent agenda 
with the approval of payment of bills, treasurers report, and October 19, 2021 
regular meeting minutes. MOTION PASSED. 

Monthly Bills totaling $ with  checks written #7116-7040 and payroll totaling 
$2,488.63 with 18 checks written #7141-7158. General Checking - $37,990.47 
High Yield Savings $297,227.21.  Grand Total $335,223.00. 

OLD BUSINESS:  

1. ENGINE 8 STATUS:  Shane stated that he received a update on the 
repairs of Engine 8, the email states that he would have it done 
within the next 2 weeks, and will deliver it to the dept when 
finished. Shane stated he would like to know what to do with this 



truck since it is being replaced, Shane stated his thought would be 
to keep it and use it, as it will be updated and be in service and 
have an extra pump and use it as a 2nd response, and use the new 
truck for the 1st truck out. 
 

2. NEW TRUCK UPDATE: Shane stated that the truck is a few weeks 
behind, and that he should have it completed around December 
1st, and that it will be delivered and there will be a letter of 
acceptance that will be signed, and then there will be 8 hours of 
training on the new truck.  

 
3. MEETING ATTENDANCE: Shane stated that he has asked the 

Assistant Chief’s to attend the meetings starting in January. He is 
still able to attend the January meeting, but Feb, March, April and 
May will be the Asst Chief reporting.  

 
4. DRAFT BUDGET: Shane stated that he did not have any major 

questions or changes. Will need to add $12,000 for the county 
EMS as they will still be here through 2023.  

 

NEW BUSINESS: 

1. PAID STAFF AT STATION: Shane presented to the board a 
preliminary paid staff idea for the department. Shane explained 
that the truck checks, preplanning business, meeting training, etc. 
Shane said it can be cancelled at any time. Discussion was held.  

2. HOSE BED COVERS: Engine 6 and 7 need hose bed covers 
replaced, and Shane discussed and presented a proposal.   

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2ND BY BANCROFT to purchase hose bed covers for 
both Engine 6 and 7 for $.  MOTION PASSED. 

3. AFG GRANT: Shane explained that the department could benefit 
from applying for this grant because it can be used for multiple 



upgrades or equipment. He stated that he would like to look into 
and apply for the grant.   

MOTION BY CITY OF EVART, 2ND BY SYLVAN for Shane to go ahead and look into 
applying for the grant. MOTION PASSED. 

4. AUDIT 2020-21: Shane presented that Audit to the board to look 
over and approve. Shane stated that he did find one issue with 
wording, and would have that corrected. If the board would look 
over the draft, and then get back with him to get the true copy 
finalized. 

5. BUILDING EXPANSION:  Shane stated the house next door has 
been sold, and not just rented. Discussion was held, about the 
possibility of acquiring the property and what the cost would be 
for the upgrade, and expansion of the property. 

Fire Chief Report:  None 

Citizens Comments: None 

Next Meeting: DECEMBER 14, 2021 AT 4:30PM 

MINUTES ARE NOT OFFICIAL UNTIL APPROVED AT A FUTURE BOARD MEETING.  

MOTION BY SYLVAN, 2ND BY CITY OF EVART, to adjourn the meeting @ 5:50pm 
MOTION PASSED. 

 

Angela Cushman 

Administrative Assistant 

Evart Area Joint Fire Department 

 

 


